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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Sidney Johnston Catts House is situated on a slight rise adjacent to 

Highway 331 and the main line of the Louisville and Nashville Railroad. Originally, 
a circular drive through a magnolia grove led to the house from the east. When 
route 331 was constructed along the east property line much of the grove was 
lost to the road right-of-way.1

2Until 1954, the Catts house stood largely unaltered; however, a change in 
ownership and subsequent subdivision of the house into several apartments resulted 
in some major changes. Presently, there are two-story galleries on the east, 
south (entrance) and west facades. That on the south is covered by the projecting 
jerkin head gable of the main roof while those on the east and west sides have 
simple shed roofs. A faceted conical roof caps the 3% story octagonal tower 
which is located on the southeast corner. The galleries are supported by square 
posts and have simple railings with square pailings. Originally, the house was 
surrounded on the east, south and west sides with a covered veranda having 
turned posts, flat-sawn brackets and balustrade and a spindel frieze. Portions 
of the second story deck were covered by projecting gables or hip roofs with 
comparable wood detailing. Originally, this veranda was entered from the south­
east corner, the location of the tower; however, today, with the verandas 
reduced, each is approached individually.

The fenestration is irregular with respect to stories and sides. On the 
south (entrance) facade, double entrance doors with glazed transom sash are 
centered between tripartite windows. The second story on this facade is divided 
into five bays, one being a door providing access to the second story gallery.
The house has a steeply pitched roof with jerkin head gables on both the east 
and south facades. The ridges were originally covered with sheet metal cresting 
while the tower had a cast iron filigree cresting. Each of the major gables 
has a small, square window with glazed lobes. Small one-story wings project from 
the north (rear) facade and an exterior wooden stairway (for access to second 
floor apartment) is located to the rear of the west gallery.

O
The interior remained unaltered through the Catts' ownership. A formal 

parlor, informal parlor, dining room and kitchen were located on the east side 
of the first floor; rooms on the west included a library and three bedrooms.
A bathroom was located at the end of the first floor hall. Four additional 
bedrooms, a sewing room, a storage room, a bathroom and one large unfinished room 
were located on the second floor. The attic is unfinished and there is evidence 
of fire damage which occurred sometime in the 1930s.

Ruth Catts Cawthon and Lillian Hollestelle, personal communications 
with Linda V. Ellsworth, June 13, 1978.

^Ibid.

^Ibid.

Ibid.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This house is significant as the home of Sidney Johnston Catts (Governor 
of Florida, 1917-1921) from 1924 until his death in 1936. Although the house 
remained in the family until 1954, it ceased being used as the family residence 
when Mrs. Catts died in 1949. Architecturally, it is an excellent example of 
the Queen Anne Style and was built when DeFuniak Springs was being developed as 
a Chautauqua retreat by the Lake DeFuniak Land Company.

Sidney Johnston Catts, born on July 31, 1863, was raised on the family 
plantation near Pleasant Hill, Alabama. Catts attended Alabama Polytechnical 
Institute (now Auburn University), 1877-1880; Howard College, 1880-81; and 
Cumberland University, where he received an LL.B. degree in 1882.1 in 1886,
Catts became a "born-again Baptist" and served as the minister for several country 
churches.

Catts' Florida career began in 1911 when he moved his family to DeFuniak 
Springs, where he served as minister for the First Baptist Church. In 1914, 
after a dispute with his congregation, Catts resigned his pastorate and turned to 
the insurance business and to politics.^

In 1916, after being a resident of Florida for only five years, Catts ran 
for the state governorship using the campaign slogan that the only three friends 
a Florida cracker could rely on were Sears-Roebuck, the Lord Jesus, and Sidney 
J. Catts. Catts was the first gubernatorial candidate in Florida to use an ^
automobile, a Model T Ford, during his campaign and to use a loud speaker system. 
This technologically advanced approach allowed Catts to reach more isolated rural 
areas, those not serviced by the railroads, and to attract crowds in the areas 
where he stopped. After a controversial campaign, Catts was inaugurated as the 
twenty-second governor on January 2, 1917.

Catts' governorship proved to be as controversial as his campaign. Balanced 
against his blatant anti-Catholicism, racism, and use of the spoils system was 
a program that incorporated a variety of progressive features, including pro­
labor reforms, termination of convict leasing, improved education, prison reform, 
and better care of the mentally ill. Wayne Flynt described Catts' widespread 
appeal as a Populist: "Catts became a surrogate for populism come to Florida two
decades late. He provided a voice for the inarticulate 'unwashed' against the 
carefully manicured and properly pedigreed."^

(See continuation sheet)
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After leaving office in 1921, Catts investigated business possibilities in 
Georgia and the North, faced several legal suits in Florida, and, eventually, 
returned to DeFuniak Springs. Catts moved into the house at 606 Live Oak Street 
in 1924 and lived there until his death in 1936.5

The Catts' House appears to have been built by 1890 on property sold to 
Vashti F. Banfill in 1886 by the Lake deFuniak Land Company, the Chautauqua's 
development branch. In 1890, Banfill sold the property to a Dr. Sherman for 
$3,200 (indicating that a house was on the site).^ Sherman is said to have moved 
to DeFuniak Springs because of the Chautauqua.7 in 1908, Sherman sold the property 
to Pauline L. Seville. The McCaskill Development Company and J.D. and Grace 
Raborn, successively, owned the property before Mrs. Catts purchased the house 
and land in 1922.8

Wayne Flynt, Cracker Messiah: Governor Sidney J. Catts of Florida,
(Baton Rouge: Louisiana State Univeristy Press, 1977), p.

2

3

4

June 13, 1978.
^Walton County, Florida, Deed Records, Bood 2, p. 136. Located in Walton 

County Courthouse, DeFuniak Springs, Florida.

Ibid., PP . 25-

Ibid. , P- 76.

Ibid., P- 360.

Ibid., P- 336;

Ruth Catts Cawthon, personal interview.
Q

Walton County, Florida, Deed Records, Book 5, p. 204; Book 24, p. 608; 
Book 59, p. 291 and Book 135, p. 63.

Item 9 Page 1

Cawthon, Mrs. Ruth Catts. Personal interview by Linda V. Ellsworth, DeFuniak 
Springs, Florida, June 13, 1978.

(Continued)
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Hollestelle, Mrs. Lillian. Personal interview by Linda V. Ellsworth, DeFuniak 
Springs, Florida, June 13, 1978.

Flynt, Wayne. Cracker Messiah: Governor Sidney J. Catts of Florida. Baton
Rouge: Louisiana State University Press, 1977.

Tebeau, Charlton. A History of Florida. Miami: University of Miami Press, 1971.

Walton County, Florida. Deed Records. Books 2, 5, 24, 59, and 135. Located 
in the Walton County Courthouse, DeFuniak Springs, Florida.
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SECRETARY OF STATE
George Firestone

STATE OF FLORIDA

irpartmrnt of ^tair
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TALLAHASSEE 32304

..

deceived
6 1973

ROBERT WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR 
DIVISION OF ARCHIVES, HISTORY. AND 

RECORDS MANAGEMENT

(904) 488>1480

IN REPLY REFER TO:

'f

February 26, 1979

Dr. William J. Murtagh 
Keeper of the National Register 
Office of Archaeology and 

Historic Preservation 
Heritage Conservation and 

Recreation Service 
Department of the Interior 
440 G Street Northwest 
Washington^ D. C. 20243

Dear Dr. Murtagh:
Enclosed please find the nomination form for the 

Sidney Johnston Catts House to the National Register 
of Historic Places. This nomination is worthy of 
submission to the Register as approved by the Florida 
Review Committee for the National Register and the 
State Historic Preservation Officer.

Sincerely,

L. Ross/Morrell 
Deputy State Historic 
Preservation Officer

LRM:Sdc

Enclosure

'FLOP IDA - A STATE OF THE ARTS'
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